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Company Profile

Headquartered in Hong Kong and with manufacturing operations in the People’s Republic of China, Welback
designs and manufactures a wide range of electronic handheld games, educational toys, multi-lingual
translators, electronic databanks and other premium item products incorporating liquid crystal display features.
The Group’s product development strategy is to apply liquid crystal display and microprocessor chip
technology to conventional products to enhance their interest, performance and efficiency.

Since 1994, Welback designs and manufactures a range of telephone products.

Since 1995, Welback commences the design and manufacture of magnetic products.

Since 1999, Welback commences the design and manufacture of internet video cameras and digital cameras.
Welback produces high quality products on a volume basis and provides committed services to customers in
major markets such as North and South America, Europe, Japan and other Scuth East Asia countries. The
Group's broad customer base is closely served by our representatives and agencies located in the People’s

Republic of China, France, Germany, Italy, United Kingdom, U.S.A. and Japan and further supported by
production facilities totalling 150,000 sg. ft. in the People’s Republic of China.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT an Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Welback Holdings Limited
{the “Company"”) will be held at the Tang Room, 3rd Floor, Sheraton Hong Kong Hotel & Towers, 20 Nathan
Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Friday, 23 November, 2001 at 9:30 a.m. for the following
purposes:;

Ordinary Business

1. To receive and consider the Audited Financial Statements and the Reports of the Directors and of the
Auditors for the year ended 30 June, 2001.

2. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix Directors’ remuneration and appoint
additional Directors.

3. Tore-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix the Auditors' remuneration.
Special Business

4. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT:

(a)  subject to paragraph (c), the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as defined in paragraph (d) below) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and
options which might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved,;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorise the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such
powers after the end of the Relevant Period (as defined in paragraph (d) below);

(c)  the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted by the Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a),
otherwise than pursuant to a Rights Issue (as defined in paragraph (d) below) or the exercise of the

subscription rights under the share option scheme of the Company or any scrip dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
shares of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, shall not exceed 20 per
cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date
of this resolution and the said approval in paragraph {(a) shall be limited accordingly; and

{d) forthe purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company; or
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(i) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company
is required by the bye-laws of the Company or Bermuda law to be held; or
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution by an ordinary
resolution of the Shareholders of the Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the Directors of the Company
to holders of shares on the register of members of the Company on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then shareholdings (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
Directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements
or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory outside Hong Kong).”

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, the following resolution as an

Ordinary Resolution:

"THAT:

@

b)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as defined
in paragraph (c) below) of all the powers of the Company to purchase its own shares, subject to
and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, be and is hereby generally and
uncenditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company purchased by the Company pursuant to
paragraph (a) during the Relevant Period (as defined in paragraph (¢) below) shall not exceed 10
per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this resolution, and the said approval in paragraph (a) shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company; or

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company
is required by the bye-laws of the Company or Bermuda law to be held; or

(i)  the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resclution by an ordinary
resolution of the Shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”




Notice of Annual General Meeting

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors to issue, allot and deal with additional shares
pursuant to the Ordinary Resolution set out in item 4 of this notice be and is hereby extended by the
addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to the Ordinary Resolution
set out in item 5 of this notice, provided that such amount shall not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this resolution.”

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, the fcllowing resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT, conditional upon (a) the Listing of Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
granting approval of the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) (a copy of which has been
produced to the meeting and marked "A” and signed by the Chairman of the meeting for the purpose
of identification) and any options which may be granted thereunder (the “Options”) and the listing of,
and permission to deal in, any shares of the Company which may be issued pursuant to the exercise of
the Options; and (b) the obtaining of any necessary approval in connection with the Share Option
Scheme pursuant to the applicable laws or the Listing Rules (if any), the Share Option Scheme proposed
to be adopted by the Company be and is hereby approved.”

By Crder of the Board
Lee Chun Kwok
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September, 2001

Notes:

o)

5

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 19 November, 2001 to Friday, 23 November,
2007 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.

A member of the Company who is the holder of two or more shares, entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is
entitled to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member. if more
than one proxy is so appointed, the appointment shall specify the number and class of shares in respect of which
each such proxy is so appointed.

To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the Company’s principal place of
business at Unit B, on the 14th Floor, Waylee Industrial Centre, Block 1, 30-38 Tsuen King Circuit, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the above meeting.

An explanatory statement containing further details regarding Resolutions 4 to 6 above will be sent to Members
shortly together with the 2001 Annual Report.

A Circular containing, inter alia, further details of the Share Option Scheme as referred in Resolution 7 will be
despatched to Members shortly together with the 2001 Annual Report.

wul
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am Turnover (HK$ million)

pleased to presen.t the anhual report of (HK$ million) @Qne 30
Welback Holdings Limited (the 600 o

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the

“Group”) for the year ended 30 June, 500 ---reooeeee e r\ """""""""""""""""""""""
2001. r\
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The financial year 2001 was very o~
challenging and difficult for the electronics 300 ----4  eeeeed el e s
manufacturing industry as the global ~
economy remained sluggish, with the b1 R e I
potential for recession and an
unfavourable consumption climate in the 100 ----4  eemeeed ] | A
UnTted States market, a worldwide
shortage of components, a rise in material o e~ - - L~ L~
costs and great pressure on product 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

pricing. Despite these difficulties, the

Group achieved turnover of HK$382.8

million during the financial year 2001, representing an increase of 9.7% when compared to that of the
previous year.

Taking the year as a whole, the global economy remained sluggish. However, the increase in customer
demand for the Group’s multimedia electronic products has demonstrated the success of our strategic move
of restructuring from a traditional handheld game manufacturer to a multimedia electronic products
manufacturer since the beginning of the year 2000, and bodes well for the future.

The Group's multimedia electronic products, including a series of Digital Cameras, Karaoke Systems, Digital
Voice Recorders and Data Banks, accounted for about 51.4% of the Group's turnover this financial year, an
increase of about 128% to HK$196.7 million compared to that of last year. Approximately 85.3% of this
turnover came from Digital Cameras and Karaoke Systems, an increase of about 165% over that recorded in
the last financial year. The Directors are of the opinion that market demand has increased dramatically as &
result of the introduction of the Group’s broad range of digital camera products, which are of competitive
price, innovative design and reliable quality. However, this business line recorded a loss from operations of
approximately HK$10 million this financial year due to the rise in material costs and great pressure on product

pricing.

The Group's toys and games products, mainly LCD handheld games and colour video games, accounted for
about 22.7% of the Group’s turnover this financial year, representing a sharp decrease of 48.7% to HK$86.9
million compared to that of the last financial year. Profit margins have fallen since the last financial year. Due
to the continuing price pressure and increasingly competitive operating environment for toy industry
participants, this business line recorded a loss from operations of approximately HK$15.5 million during the
year.




Chairman’s Statement

Although the telephone product market is competitive, the Group's telecommunication product business
achieved annual sales of approximately HK$89.2 million this financial year, representing an increase of 24.8%
compared to that of last financial year. Sales of these products continued to be profitable.

On 13 October, 2000, the Company through its wholly owned subsidiary, Welback International Investments
Limited ("WIIL"), entered into an agreement ("JV Agreement”) with independent third parties for the
formation of a company (“JV Co") which would be involved in waste and/or water treatment projects in the
PRC and Hong Kong. Pursuant to the JV Agreement, WIIL would subscribe for 40% of the issued share capital
of the JV Co by cash at a subscription price of HK$40,404,040. A deposit of HK$12,121,212 representing
30% of the subscription price was paid by WIIL on 18 October, 2000. As part of the formation of the JV Co,
the parties to the Agreement attempted to draw up a shareholders’ agreement to regulate the rights and
obligations of each of the parties to the Agreement as shareholders of the JV Co. However, after lengthy
negotiations, the parties to the JV Agreement could not reach agreement on certain terms and conditions of
the shareholders’ agreement. As a result, the parties to the Agreement entered into a Cancellation Agreement
on 22 January, 2001, whereby the JV Agreement was cancelled. As a result, the Company received
HK$11,555,555 as refund of the deposit paid by the Company, after deducting certain expenses. In addition,
a total sum of HK$216,850, being interest earned on the deposits paid, was returned to the respective parties.
After accounting for all legal and professional charges and the interest earned, the Company realized a loss of
approximately HK$1,870,618. This loss has been charged to the Income Statement of this financial year.

In order to reduce the interest burden of the Company, with the agreement of the convertible bondholders,
the Company redeemed early all outstanding 3% convertible bonds amounting to HK$20 million on 17
November, 2000 and 6 February, 2001 respectively. '

After accounting for all provisions and finance costs, the net loss for this financial year increased to
approximately HK$32.7 million when compared to last year's loss of HK$22.1 million. "

On 25 April, 2001, the Company through its wholly owned subsidiary, Welback International Investments
Limited ("WIIL"), acquired a 50% interest in Fine Apex Limited (“Fine Apex"). Fine Apex is now holding a
leasehold property in Hong Kong for resale. The leasehold property had an open market value of
approximately HK$47.5 million as at 30 June, 2001.

In previous years, the Group did not directly sell its products to the PRC market. However, with China’s
forthcoming accession to the World Trade Organisation, the Directors are of the opinion that such a move
would lead to a potential market for the Group’s products. In order to expand into the China market, the
Group incorporated a foreign investment enterprise, Ruian Weiye Technology (Shenzhen) Limited, in
Shenzhen, China on 26 June, 2001. This company has been approved for 50% domestic sales and will engage
in the manufacture and distribution of multimedia electronic products and LCD handheld games worldwide
and to China. The Directors consider that there is strong market demand in China for the Group's LCD
handheld games products, which are of competitive price, innovative design and reliable guality, and they are
optimistic that significant sales will be achieved during the 2002 financial year.

~J

Welback Holdings Limited ¢ annual report 2001




Welback Holdings Limited e annual report 2001

Chairman’s Statement

On 16 July, 2001, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Quicky Technologies Limited (" Quicky"),
entered into an agreement (“Agreement”) with several Vendors, whereby upon certain terms and conditions,
Quicky agreed to acquire and the vendors agreed to dispose of the Sales Shares, representing an aggregate of
25% of the issued share capital of Gen-Wan Technology Corp, Taiwan (“Gen Wan”), at an aggregate
consideration of HK$60 million. Gen Wan is a company principally engaged in the development of Wideband
Code Division Multiple Access ("WCDMA") and Orthogonal Frequency Division Multiplexing ("OFDM*)
technologies and the sales of related system networks and products. A refundable deposit in the sum of HK$1
million was paid by Quicky to the Vendors on 16 July, 2001. Upon completion, Quicky shall pay the balance of
the consideration (having deducted the refundable deposit paid) to the Vendors: (a) by delivering five
promissory notes with an aggregate sum of HK$44 million duly issued by Quicky; and (b) by way of cash in
respect of the sum of HK$15 million. The promissory notes are payable on written demand at the expiry date
of the 2 year period from the completion date. A circular containing the details of the acquisition was
dispatched to shareholders of the Company for their information on 27 July, 2001.

During the year under review, the Group implemented a series of cost control measures to reduce
manufacturing overheads and the administrative expenses of the operating divisions. However, the effort was
negated by the worldwide shortage of components and the rise in material costs. Individual operations have
established good and reliable relationships with strategic suppliers of both major components and technical
support for the Group's products.

Looking ahead, despite the negative effects on the global economy of the Terrorist attacks on the United
States on 11 September, 2001, the Directors are of the opinion that the rapid development and acceptance of
IT technologies worldwide will create strong market demand for digital and internet-related products in the
years ahead, while the LCD handheld games market will further consolidate in the developed countries,
although growth is still attainable elsewhere. Hence the Group is focusing its attention on accelerating the
development of new products for the four-selected product category areas, i.e. digital cameras, karaoke
systems, games and telephone products. The Group's existing manufacturing facilities were further equipped
and modified in the middle of the year 2001 so as to increase manufacturing capacity for hi-tech electronic
products in order to meet customer demand.

The Directors are convinced that the Group is well positioned to diversify its product range, improve
production efficiency, increase market exposure and expand its customer base.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | should like to express our sincere appreciation to the management and
all our staff for their diligence, enthusiasm, their contribution to the Group during the year and for their
commitment for the future, and to our bankers and auditors for their continued support. | should also like to
thank all our shareholders for their continued faith in the Group.

Lee Chun Kwok
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September, 2001




Management Discussion and Analysis

Results

Results for the year (HK$ million)

. (HK$ million) -
The consolidated turnover of the Group 40 Year ended June 30

for the year ended 30 June, 2001
increased by approximately 9.7% to
HK$382.8 million (2000: HK$348.8
million}. The Net Loss for the year was ‘
HK$32.7 million (2000 loss of HK$22.1 e 7o
million).

The Directors do not recommend the

payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 30 June, 2001. (2000: HK$Nil)

Operations Review and 40
PU‘@SE@@C‘&S 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

Multimedia Electronic Products Division

o ‘ Percentage of Total Turnover
The turnover of the Group’s multimedia electronic products

for the financial year under review increased by about - @e 30
128% to HK$196.7 million compared to that of last By Products
financial year. Approximately 85.3% of this turnover came w529 S "“—’*Tsﬂ
from Digital Cameras and Karaoke Systems. As this was ‘f ’ \ 811%
the first complete financial year since the restructuring “ ;/
took effect, improvements to the Group's cost control \\ 7 [.-19—97
system were still being made. As such, this business ine  ~ T AT o
recorded a loss from operations of approximately HK$10 mﬁz "”w
million during the financial year under review. ‘\ .M

. - Y A
The division introduced digital camera products with  ----------------- e {j??_&
photo resolution of 100,000 pixels to the market in June 219 8% //__); *\\
2000 and further launched various advanced models with \ m\‘: 75.29%
photo resolution of 300,000 pixels to the United States \\ / )
and Japan markets in November 2000. Both of these 1999

models were well received by the market. However, the 2% .7
. ‘ N 24.8%
Group's plans to launch a digital camera model with M_/ ’
| 485%

/

photo resolution of 1.3 million pixels during this financial \

year had to be held over because of the delays in the \ mo
development of software by the vendor. However, with P
. o ' 2.6%
the assistance of the software vendor, this division 23.3% /
succeeded in launching such a model in August 2001. The 51.4%
, o 22.7% \__
Directors are of the opinion that the turnover of such L .
. . . S 2001
digital camera models will contribute significantly to the  ~-----mmoomomn - moeenoneeinoo oo o 2001
) } . ) T Multimedia Electronic Products
Group's earnings in the next financial year. [ Toys & Games Products

3 Telecommunication Products
T Other Products
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Vianagement Discussion and Analysis

This division is still in the process of developing an internet-related musical instrument in the form of a
Karaoke product. It was hoped to faunch this product during the financial year under review, but it has been
unfortunately delayed because of technical problems. Development work is continuing.

The Group’s existing manufacturing facilities were further equipped and modified in the middle of the year
2001 so as to increase manufacturing capacity for hi-tech electronic products in order to meet customer
demand.

The Directors are concerned to note the inevitable negative effects on the global economy of the Terrorist
attacks on the United States on 11 September, 2001. However, looking ahead, the Directors are of the
opinion that there will be more room to expand the Group’s multimedia electronic products that are digital
and internet-related because of the continued development of the digital and internet world. They recognize
that the market is keenly competitive and that price pressures from customers will lead to lower profit margins
for such products. In order to be competitive and to expand its market share, this division is in the process of
lowering material costs and improving production efficiency and product quality.

Toys and Games Products Division

The turnover of the Group’s toys and games products for the financial year under review decreased by 48.7%
to HK$86.9 million compared to that of the last financial year. In the year 2001, the LCD games market
remained sluggish, especially in the United States. Profit margins have also fallen since the last financial year.

Locking ahead, the Directors are of the opinion that the worldwide LCD games market will further consolidate
in the developed countries, although growth is still attainable elsewhere. In order to utilize the Group's
existing production facilities in a more cost effective manner, the Group further restructured part of its existing
production facilities to handle multimedia electronic products during this financial year.

Meanwhile, the management of this division is closely working with the Group’s customers in the
development of the LCD games market, especially with a view to expediting expansion into the China market,
The Directors expect that strong market demand in China will benefit the Group's LCD handheld games
products, which are of competitive price, innovative design and reliable guality, and they are optimistic that
significant sales will be achieved during the 2002 financial year.

In order to ensure profitability, the division needs to further reduce its running costs, strengthen its inventory
management, develop and launch new products in a timely manner in order to cope with market demand and
changes in consumer behaviour.

Telecommunication Products Division

The Group’s telecommunication products are mainly corded phones which incorporate a range of features.
The division achieved a turnover of HK$89.2 million during the financial year under review, representing an
increase of 24.8% when compared to that of last financial year. This division is maintaining its positive
contribution to the Group.




Management Discussion and Analysis

The division is focusing on the higher quality European market for its products, and sales to this market
accounted for about 78% of the total sales of telecommunication products for the financial year under review.
Due to the weakening of the Euro since the last quarter of 2000, the division faced keen price pressure from
its European customers, and conseguently, profit margins were affected. In order to be competitive, besides
imposing measures to reduce material costs, this division will accelerate the development of new telephone
products and telephone-related products. The division is also positioned to expand its customer base in North
America and South East Asian countries.

Geographical Review

In the year 2001, the consumption climate remained ' Percentage of Total Turnover
sluggish in the United States market. The Group’s sales to ‘ @une 30

North America during the financial year, which accounted

) By Markets
for about 51.2% of the Group’s total turnaver, fell slightly
by 4.6% to HK$196.2 million compared to the last 107% . ——285%
financial year. However, sales to Japan increased sharply 40.5% '
by 182% to HK$57.8 million compared to that recorded R ~—20.3%
last year and accounted for about 15% of the Group's - 1997

total turnover. Approximately HK$42.7 million of this

7.4%
turnover resulted from the sales of digital cameras. The LI%
Directors are working hard to increase the Group's global 0.3% 36.5%
303%
market share but particularly in Japan and Europe. S ~ fT998
. . o e g 9.9%
Financial Review and Liquidity 12%
‘J
|
in order to reduce the interest burden of the Company, 34.8% 48.1% B
with the agreement of the convertible bondholders, the — --ooooooooooo o (1988
Company redeemed early all outstanding 3% convertible 5.9% 8.6%
bonds in the amount of HK$20 million on 17 November, '
26.5%

2000 and 6 February, 2007 respectively. However, during ;
the year, the Group acquired a new mortgage loan for a 2000

property held for resale and three new finance leases for

15.1% 45%
plant and machinery amounting to HK$26.6 million. As a | 5139
result, the Group’s gearing ratio increased from 13.2% at 29.1%
the beginning of the year to 20.6% as at 30 June, 2001, - @1
based on the non-current secured term loans and other " North America
loans of approximately HK$24.5 million (30 June, 2000: - f:;:ge
HK$20 million) and net worth of HK$119 milfion (30 June, . . Local and Others

2000: HK$152.6 million).

As at 30 June, 2001, the Group's net asset value stood at HK$119 million with total assets of approximately
HK$255.5 million and total liabilities of approximately HK$136.5 million. The current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was 1.76 as at 30 June, 2001, compared to 1.90 as at 30 June, 2000. The
Group's bank balances and short-term deposits at 30 June, 2001 amounted to HK$25.8 million. The Group
also spent approximately HK$13 million on machinery and moulds to upgrade its manufacturing capablilities
during the year 2001, an increase of HK$8 million over the last financial year.

Welback Holdings Limited & annual report 2001
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has total banking facilities of HK$66 million to finance the operations of the Group. Total bank
borrowings, including secured term loans, finance leases, import loans and overdrafts, amounted to HK$58.2
million as at 30 June, 2001 (30 June, 2000: HK$19.2 million).

Exchange Rate Exposure

While the sales of the Group are mainly denominated in US dollars, the purchases of raw materials are mainly
in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Bank borrowings are also denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and US doliars with interest being charged on a fixed rate basis. As the exchange rates of US dollars against
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi were relatively stable during the year, the Group's exposure to fluctuations
in exchange rates was minimal.

Employee Schemes

As at 30 June, 2001, the Group had about 1,349 employees of whom 80 are based in Hong Kong and 1,269
are based in the Group's factories in Shenzhen PRC. The number of workers employed by the Group varies
from time to time depending on production needs and they are remunerated based on industry practice.

The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed and approved by the
executive directors. Apart from pension funds and in-house training programmes, discretionary bonuses and
share options are awarded 1o certain employees according 1o the assessment of individual performance.

Other Maftter

During this financial year, the Company issued a sole guarantee and a wholly-owned subsidiary had pledged
its properties to the bank for obtaining credit facilities to the extent of HK$27 million which can be jointly
utilized by a wholly-owned subsidiary and a 71.6% owned subsidiary of the Company. As at 30 June, 2007,
there was no outstanding amount of facilities utilized by the 71.6% owned subsidiary (30 June, 2000:
HK$Nil).

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, which comprises two independent non-executive directors of the Company, has
reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters during this financial year. The Audit Committee met
with the external auditors three times to review the interim and final results for the financial year ended 30
June, 2001, to consider the Group's significant accounting policies and to discuss the Group’s internal control
system.

On behalf of the Board

Fong Wing Seng
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 28 September, 2001




Directors’ Profiles

Executive Directors

LEE Chun Kwok, aged 57 is the chairman and co-founder of the Group. He has over twenty years of
experience in the LCD electronics industry. He is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning and financial
management.

FONG Wing Seng, aged 52 is the managing director and co-founder of the Group. He has over twenty years
of experience in the LCD electronics business and is responsible for overall product design, research and
development. He is also responsible for marketing and management of the Group.

OXLEY Clive William Baker, OBE, ED, aged 65, who joined the Group in July 2001, was a member of the
Hong Kong Government's Administrative Service for more than twenty-five years. He retired in 1994 as
Commissioner for Customs and Excise after having served in a variety of posts including those of District
Officer for Sham Shui Po, Sai Kung and Tai Po, Deputy Director of Broadcasting, Commissioner for Recreation
and Culture, Deputy Secretary for Planning Environment and Lands, and a member of the Sino-British Land
Commission.

Non-executive Director

XU Yang Sheng, aged 43, who joined the Group in December 1999, is the Chairman of the Department of
Mechanical and Automation Engineering at The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a Doctor of
Philosophy degree from the University of Pennsylvania. He is also a senior member of the Institute of Electrical
and Electronics Engineers, a senior member of the American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics and a
member of the New York Academy of Science.

Independent Non-executive Directors

WONG Chun Nam, Duffy, aged 48, who joined the Group in October 1996, is a partner of Ho, Wong &
Wong, Solicitors & Notaries. He has been a solicitor in Hong Kong since 1982. He has also served as an Audit
Committee member of the Group since December 1998

CHAN Mo Po, Paul, aged 46, who joined the Group in December 1998, is a partner of Messrs. Paul Chan &
Partners, practising certified public accountants in Hong Kong. He has alsc served as an Audit Committee
member of the Group since December 1998.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June, 2001.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Results

Details of the Group's results for the year ended 30 June, 2001 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 21.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
on page 61 of the annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at a cost of HK$13,089,040 and disposed
of property, plant and equipment with a net book value of HK$704,404, respectively.

At 30 June, 2001, the Group revalued its leasehold properties on an open market value basis. Net revaluation

decreases of HK$2,036,871 and HK$30,448 have been charged to the asset revaluation reserve and the
income statement, respectively.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set
out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

Details of the share option scheme and movements during the year in the share options of the Company are
set out in note 25 to the financial statements.




Directors’ Report

Reserves

Details of movements during the year in the reserves of the Group and the Company are set out in note 26 to
the financial statements.

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive directors:

Lee Chun Kwok (Chairman)

Fong Wing Seng (Managing Director)

Clive William Baker Oxley {(appointed on 16 July, 2001)
Non-executive director:

Xu Yang Sheng

Independent non-executive directors:

Chan Mo Po, Paul
Wong Chun Nam, Duffy

In accordance with the provisions of Clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Clive William Baker
Oxley and Mr. Wong Chun Nam, Duffy retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election.

The non-executive director and the independent non-executive directors have been appointed for a term
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Share Options

(i} Shares
At 30 June, 2001, the interests of the directors in the shares of the Company and its subsidiaries as
recorded in the register reguired to be maintained under Section 29 of Hong Kong Securities (Disclosure

of Interests) Ordinance (the "SDI Ordinance”) were as follows:

Number of the Company’s ordinary shares

Name of director Personal interests Other interests
Lee Chun Kwok 10 2,071,503,868 (Note)
Fong Wing Seng 10 2,071,503,868 (Note)

—_
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Directors’ Report

Note: These shares are held through Princesa Holdings Limited, 53.94% of which is owned by Otta Trading Limited
as trustee of a unit trust, all the units of which are held by a discretionary trust established for the spouse and
issue of Mr. Lee Chun Kwok and 46.06% of which is owned by Primecone Inc. as trustee of a unit trust, all the
units of which are held by a discretionary trust established for the spouse and issue of Mr. Fong Wing Seng.

(ii)  Share Options

A summary of the share options outstanding at 1 July, 2000 and 30 Jjune, 2001, insofar as the
Company’s directors are concerned is as follows:

Number of
share options
outstanding

Exercisable at 1.7.2000
Name of director on or after Exercise price and 30.6.20061
HKS$

Lee Chun Kwok 27.11.1993 0.0424 6,324,528
27.11.1994 0.0424 6,324,528

1.7.1995 0.0176 12,654,545

1.7.1996 0.0176 12,654,545

Fong Wing Seng 27.11.1993 0.0424 6,324,528
27.11.1994 0.0424 : 6,324,528

1.7.1995 0.0176 12,654,545

1.7.1996 0.0176 12,654,545

Xu Yang Sheng 3.1.2001 0.0135 31,600,000
3.1.2002 0.0135 47,400,000

No options were granted to or were exercised by the directors of the Company during the year.

Details of the Company's share option scheme are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

(0)

Save as aforesaid and other than certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held by Mr. Lee Chun Kwok in
trust for the Group, at 30 June, 2001:

(i) none of the directors or the chief executives or their associates had any interests in any securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SDI Ordinance; and

(il none of the directors or the chief executives or their spouses or children under 18 had any right to
subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any

arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

Welback Holdings Limited ® annual report 2001
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of Significance

Dr. Liang Ping, wife of Dr. Xu Yang Sheng, provided project development and consultancy services to the
Group and received consultancy fees amounting to HK$360,000 for such services during the year.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 30 June, 2001, the following interests of 10% or more in the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 16(1) of the SDI

Ordinance:

Name Number of ordinary shares held
Otta Trading Limited 2,071,503,868
Primecone Inc. 2,071,503,868
Princesa Holdings Limited 2,071,503,868

The interests of Otta Trading Limited and Primecone Inc. are held through Princesa Heldings Limited and have
been disclosed as interests of Messrs Lee Chun Kwok and Fong Wing Seng respectively in the directors’
interests in shares above.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest in the share capital of the Company that was
required to be recorded under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance.

Convertible Bonds, Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar Rights

Other than the share options set out in note 25 to the financial statements, the Company had no other
outstanding convertible bonds, securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 30 June, 2001.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

—_
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- Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and together with the next four largest customers accounted for
approximately 12% and 47 % respectively of the Group’s turnover for the year under review.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and together with the next four largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 18% and 46% respectively of the Group’s purchases for the year under review.

As at 30 June, 2001, to the knowledge of the directors of the Company, none of the directors, their associates
or any shareholders owning more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any beneficial interests in the
Group's five largest customers or the five largest suppliers mentioned in the preceding paragraphs.

Post Balance Sheet Event

Details of a significant post balance sheet event are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 30 June, 2001 with the Code of Best Practice as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Chun Kwok
Chafrman

Hong Kong, 28 September, 2001




Auditors’ Report

B2 =R Z5ENT Deloitte
Cortiied lc pccountents BT Touche

111C ht Road C |
Hong?(r:)nnagug oad Fentre TOhmatsu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WELBACK HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 21 to 60 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair
view, In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report
our opinion to you.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also inciudes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Group and the Company, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. [n forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

—
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WELBACK HOLDINGS LIMITED - continued
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited fiability)

Fundamental Uncertainty Relating to the Recoverability of Trade Debtors

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in note 17 to the financial
statements which explains that the Group is currently engaged in a legal action against North American
Foreign Trading Corporation (“NAFT"), including for the recovery of trade receivables in the sum of HK$18
million. Although it is not possible to determine the outcome of these proceedings with reasonable certainty
at this time, after consultation with the Group's legal advisors, the directors are pursuing the aforesaid action
vigorously. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements in respect of this matter. We
consider that the fundamental uncertainty has been appropriately disclosed in the financial statements and our
opinion is not qualified in this respect.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company at 30 June, 2001 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Crdinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Hong Kong, 28 September, 2001




Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Provision for doubtful debts

Loss from operations
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss before taxation
Taxation credit

Loss before minority interests
Minority interests

Net loss for the year

Loss per share
Basic and diluted

Notes

10

11

2001
HKS

382,764,083
(333,625,779)

2000
HK$

348,767,562
(291,813,971)

49,138,304 56,953,591
5,045,841 3,837,300
(19,636,226) (18,913,096)
(58,366,992) (55,312,651)
(5,014,790) {7,659,953)
(28,833,863) (21,094,809)

(3.744,744)

(2,662,425)
635,509

(32,578,607)

(23,121,725)

- 1,388,209
(32,578,607) (21,733,516)
(101,810) (350,735)
(32,680,417) (22,084,251)
(0.51) cent (0.61) cent

N
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 30 June, 2001

Notes
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12
investments in securities 14
Amount due from an investee company 15
Current assets
Inventories 16
Property held for sale
Trade and other receivables 17
Taxation recoverable
Time deposits, bank balances and cash
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18
Short-term secured bank borrowings 19
Obligations under hire purchase contracts
due within one year 21
Other secured borrowings
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Minority interests
Non-current liabilities
Secured term loan due after one year 20
Obligations under hire purchase contracts
due after one year 21
Convertible bonds 22

2001 2000
HKS HK$
59,652,645 57,807,861
- 1,000

171,266 271,266
59,823,911 58,080,127
69,477,730 72,777,040
36,556,286 -
63,867,447 101,845,621
12,105 156,556
25,759,165 68,975,131
195,672,733 243,754,348
77,760,904 110,176,995
26,799,422 18,291,862
913,466 137,926
6,000,000 -
111,473,792 128,606,783
84,198,941 115,147,565
144,022,852 173,227,692
550,641 598,716
23,543,290 659,485
964,925 148,106

- 19,263,501
24,508,215 20,071,092
118,963,996 152,557,884




Consolidated Balance Sheet

At 30 june, 2001

Notes 2001 2000
HK$ HKS$

Capital and reserves
Share capital 24 64,901,078 64,491,078
Reserves 26 54,062,918 88,066,806

118,963,996 152,557,884

The financial statements on pages 21 to 60 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 September, 2001
and are signed on its behalf by:

Lee Chun Kwok Fong Wing Seng
Director Director

3
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Balance Sheet
At 30 June, 2001
Notes 2001 2000
HKS$ HK$
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 - 336,247
Investments in subsidiaries 13 43,362,681 43,362,673
Net amounts due from subsidiaries 13 16,708,873 3,497,315
Amount due from an investee company 15 171,266 271,266
60,242,820 47,467,501
Current assets
Other receivables 14,119 18,907
Net amounts due from subsidiaries receivable
within one year 13 36,174,555 64,810,446
Time deposits, bank balances and cash 14,520,347 61,713,773
50,709,021 126,543,126
Current liability
Other payables 1,089,514 1,311,966
Net current assets 49,619,507 125,231,160
Total assets less current liabilities 109,862,327 172,698,661
Non-current liability
Convertible bonds 22 - 19,263,501
109,862,327 153,435,160
Capital and reserves
Share capital 24 64,901,078 64,491,078
24 Reserves 26 44,961,249 88,944,082
109,862,327 153,435,160
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

Revaluation decrease in respect of properties
Exchange difference arising on translation of overseas operation
Net (loss) gain not recognised in the consolidated income statement

Net loss for the year

Total recognised losses

2001 2000

HKS HK$
(2,036,871) (1,343,531)
- 4,172,405
(2,036,871) 2,828,874

(32,680,417)

(22,084,251)

(34,717,288)

(19,255,377)

5
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

Notes

Net cash outflow from operating activities 27

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received
Interest paid
Interest on obligations under hire purchase contracts
Dividend received

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and
servicing of finance

Taxation
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded

Net cash inflow for taxation

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Purchase of a subsidiary (net of cash and cash
equivalents acquired) 28
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and cash
equivalents disposed of) 29

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Net cash outflow before financing

2001
HKS$

(25,463,608)

2000
HK$

(43,807,507)

2,034,003 1,026,694
(2,897,372) (2,478,007)
(110,873) (26,637)
8,000 -
(966,242) (1,477,950)
(12,159) -
156,610 -
144,451 -
{10,616,800) (4,677,900)
180,351 22,960
20,998 -
- (65,541)
(10,415,451) (4,721,481)

(36,700,850)

(50,006,938)




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

Financing
Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds
Other new borrowings raised
Net increase in trust receipts and import loans
Redemption of convertible bonds
Repayment of other borrowings
Expenses paid in connection with the issue of shares
Issue costs of convertible bonds
Repayment of term loans
Repayment of obligations under hire purchase contracts

Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

30

31

2001 2000

HKS HKE
1,123,400 94,806,172

- 20,000,000

6,000,000 5,000,000
4,047,331 830,676
(20,000,000) -
- (9,777,778)
- (4,653,935)
- (818,332)
(234,344) (139,900)
(879,881) (136,002)
(9,943,494) 105,110,901
(46,644,344) 55,103,963
51,665,563 (3,434,506)
- (3,894)

5,021,219 51,665,563

i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

1. General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 13.

2. Adoption of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice

In the current year, the Group has adopted Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 14 (Revised)
“Leases” (SSAP 14 (Revised)) for the first time.

SSAP 14 (Revised) has introduced some amendments to the basis of accounting for finance and
operating leases, and to the disclosures specified for the Group's leasing arrangements. These changes
have not had any material effect on the results for the current or prior accounting years and,
accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required. Disclosures for all the Group's leasing
arrangements have been modified so as to comply with requirements of SSAP 14 (Revised). Comparative

amounts have been restated in order to achieve a consistent presentation.
3. Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the
revaluation of certain properties.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its

N
(00]

subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group have been eliminated on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value ascribed to the Group's
share of the separable net assets at the date of acquisition of a subsidiary and is written off to reserves
immediately on acquisition. Negative goodwill, which represents the excess of the fair value ascribed to
the Group’s share of the separable net assets at the date of acquisition of a subsidiary over the purchase
consideration, is credited to reserves.

On disposal of an investment in a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill previously eliminated
against or credited to reserves is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
subsidiary.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or indirectly, holds more than half of the
issued share capital, or controls more than half of the voting power, or where the Company controls the

composition of its board of directors or equivalent governing body.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost, as reduced by any
identified impairment losses.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable during the year.

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at cost.

All securities other than held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value.

Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised gains and losses are included in profit or loss
for the year. For other securities, unrealised gains and losses are dealt with in equity, until the security is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is included in
profit or loss for the year.

Turnover

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers during the year.

N
O
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Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest
rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold properties, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation at the balance sheet date. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the asset has been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and
overhaul costs, is normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Where the recoverable amount of an asset has declined below its carrying amount, the carrying amount
is reduced to reflect the decline in value. In determining the recoverable amount of assets, expected
future cash flows are not discounted to their present values.

Leasehold properties are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued amounts, being the fair values on
the basis of their existing use at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of leasehold properties is credited tc the asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to the income statement to
the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation
of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued asset, the balance on the asset revaluation reserve attributable to that asset is transferred to
retained profits.




Noftes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 30 june, 2001

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The cost of leasehold land is amortised over the lease term using the straight line method.

The cost of buildings is depreciated over 40 years or the lease term, whichever is shorter, using the
straight line method.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance method, at the rate of 20% per annum.

Assets held under hire purchase contracts are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties remaining unsold at year end and are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost which comprises direct purchase cost and other incidental expenses that have been incurred in
bringing the properties to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course
of business less estimated selling expenses or by management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises direct
materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, is calculated using the first in, first out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
all costs to completion and costs to make the sale.

w
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Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases

Hire purchases contracts are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the contract transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under hire purchase contracts are capitalised at their fair value at the date of acquisition or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the balance sheet as an obligation under hire purchase contracts. Finance charges, which
represent the difference between the total hire purchase commitments and the recorded value of the
assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over the term of the relevant contract so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income statement on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds are stated at the aggregate of the net proceeds from the issue.

The net proceeds represent the amount received on the issue of the convertible bonds after deduction of
direct issue costs. Direct issue costs are amortised to the income statement on a straight line basis over
the period from the date of issue to their final redemption date. If any of the convertible bonds are
purchased and cancelled, redeemed or converted prior to the final redemption date, any remaining
unamortised issue costs attributable to the convertible bonds purchased, redeemed or converted will be
written off immediately to the income statement.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year after adjusting for items which are non-
assessable or disallowed. Certain items of income and expense are recognised for tax purposes in a
different accounting period from that in which they are recognised in the financial statements. The tax
effect of the resulting timing differences, computed using the liability method, is recognised as deferred
taxation in the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will
crystallise in the foreseeable future.




Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies other than Hong Kong Dollars are translated into Hong Kong Dollars
at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of the transactions or at the contracted settlement rate.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies other than Hong Kong Dollars are re-
translated into Hong Kong Dollars at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising
on exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong which are denominated in
currencies other than Hong Kong Doliars are translated into Hong Kong Dollars at the rates ruling on the
balance sheet date. All exchange differences arising on consolidation are dealt with in the translation
reserve.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research and development is charged to the income statement in the year in which it is
incurred except where a major project is undertaken and it is reasonably anticipated that development
costs will be recovered through future commercial activity. Such development costs are deferred and
written off over the life of the project from the date of commencement of commercial operation subject
to a maximum of five years.

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

The amount of contributions payable to the Group’s defined contribution scheme and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme ) is charged as an expense as the contributions fall due.

Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents represent short-term, highly liguid investments which are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which were within three months of maturity when acquired, less advances
from banks repayable within three months from the dates of the advances.

w
w

Welback Holdings Limited ¢ annual report 2001




Welback Holdings Limited * annual report 2001

Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

4. Segmental Information

The Group’s turnover and contribution to foss from operations for the year ended 30 June, 2001,
analysed by principal activity and by geographical location, were as follows:

Contribution to loss

Turnover from operations
2001 2000 2001 2000
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
By principal activity:
Manufacture and sale of
Multimedia electronic products| 196,740,991 86,328,215 (9,985,832) (1,122,886)
Toys and games products 86,850,852 169,359,449 (15,467,935) (16,042,864)
Trading in telecommunication
products 89,158,364 71,454,029 702,579 1,224,077
Others 10,013,876 21,625,869 (4,082,675) (5,153,136)
382,764,083 348,767,562 (28,833,863) (21,094,809)
Contribution to loss
Turnover from operations
2001 2000 2001 2000
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
By geographical location:
North America 196,229,860 205,781,957 (8,867,636) (8,145,265)
Europe 111,485,511 92,294,344 (2,189,467) (596,065)
Japan 57,797,787 20,530,405 (9,028,651) (3,265,955)
Local and others 17,250,925 30,160,856 (8,748,109) (8,087,524)
382,764,083 348,767,562 (28,833,863} (21,094,809)
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5.

Other Income

Included in other income is net income (loss) from investments, as follows:

2001 2000
HK$ HK$
Interest earned on bank deposits 2,034,003 1,045,601
Dividend from trading securities, listed 8,000 -
Net realised (loss) gain on disposal of trading securities (169,839) 215,001
Impairment loss in respect of investments in securities (1,000) (351,000)
Impairment loss in respect of amount due from an investee company (100,000} (1,360,000)
1,771,164 (450,398)
Loss from Operations
2001 2000
HKS HKS
Loss from operations has been arrived at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration 665,000 685,000
Depreciation
Owned assets 8,168,151 7,985,470
Assets held under hire purchase contracts 304,382 77,348
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 524,053 52,610
Operating lease charges
Rented premises 2,071,816 2,036,515
Plant and machinery 101,813 111,065
Research and development costs 899,639 782,362
Staff costs
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, net of
forfeited contributions of HK$534,010
(2000: HK$192,872) 757,668 569,971
Severance payments 1,228,172 587,835
Others staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 47,357,699 50,346,663
Total staff costs 49,343,539 51,504,469

W
un
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7. Finance Costs

2001 2000
HK$ HK$
Interest on:

Bank borrowings wholly repayable
— Within five years {2,469,765) (2,422,448)
— QOver five years (125,781) -
Convertible bonds (301,826) (131,507)
Obligations under hire purchase contracts (110,873) (26,637)
Amortisation of issue costs of convertible bonds {736,499) (81,833)

(3,744,744) (2,662,425)

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Highest Paid Employees

2001 2000
HKS HK$
() The directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows:
Directors’ fees
Executive directors - -
Non-executive director 240,000 129,677
Independent non-executive directors 360,000 360,000
600,000 489,677
Other emoluments
Executive directors
- Salaries and other benefits 3,180,337 4,006,773
36 3,780,337 4,496,450

The emoluments of the directors were within the following bands:

Number of directors

HKS$ 2001 2000
Nil to 1,000,000 3
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 2 2
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8. Directors’ Emoluments and Highest Paid Employees (continued)
(i) The emoluments of the highest paid employees are analysed as follows:
The five highest paid employees of the Group in the year included two (2000: two) directors of the

Company, details of whose emciuments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2000: three) are analysed as follows:

2001 2000
HKS HK$
Salaries and other benefits 2,918,559 2,841,453

The emoluments of the employees were within the following bands:

Number of employees

HK3$ 2001 2000
Nil to 1,000,000 2 2
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1

3 3

9. Taxation Credit

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as the Company and
its subsidiaries had no assessable profits for the year or the estimated assessable profits, if any, are
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward. Last year's taxation credit represented the aggregate of
Hong Kong Profits Tax overprovided in prior year and overprovision of deferred taxation in prior year.

Details of potential deferred taxation asset not recognised in the year are set out in note 23.

10. Net Loss for the Year

Of the Group’'s net loss for the year of HK$32,680,417 (2000: HK$22,084,251), a loss of
HK$44,696,233 (2000: HK$14,513,584) has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

W
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11. Loss per Share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the net loss for the year of HK$32,680,417 (2000:
HK$22,084,251) and on the weighted average number of 6,450,118,799 (2000: 3,606,707,707)
ordinary shares in issue throughout the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share for 2001 does not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding share options since their exercise would result in a decrease in net loss per share from
continuing ordinary operations.

The computation of diluted loss per share for 2000 did not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds and share options since their exercise resulted in a decrease in net loss

per share from continuing ordinary operations.

12. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Tools and Motor
properties improvements  equipment  machinery moulds vehicles Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
THE GROUP
COST OR VALUATION
At 1 July, 2000 29,250,000 11661546 15951481 23828328 36,552,553 4658132 121,902,040
Additions - 1,110,793 2,742,545 6,921,927 2,313,775 - 13,089,040
Disposals - - (996,724)  (2,535,505) (14,352) - (3,546,581)
Revaluation decrease (3,320,000) - - - - - (3,320,000)
At 30 June, 2001 25,930,000 12,772,339 17,697,302 28214750 38851976 4,658,132 128,124,499
Comprising:
At cost - 12772339 17697302 28214750 38851976 4,658,132 102,194,499
At valuation - 2001 25,930,000 - - - - - 25,930,000
25,930,000 12772339 17697302 28214750 38851976 4658132 128,124,499
S
S DEPRECIATION
é At 1uly, 2000 - 8922470 10,363,057 18,562,941 22,926,843 3318868 64,094,179
L Provided for the year 1,252,681 807,362 1,206,268 1,949,767 2,988,603 267852 8,472,533
§ Eliminated on disposals - - (453,125)  (2,382,202) (6,850) - (2842177)
B Eliminated on revaluation (1,252,681) - - - - - (1,252,681
:
§ At 30 June, 2007 _ - 9,729,832 11,116,200 18,130,506 25,908,596 3,586,720 68,471,854
3
2
§ NET BOOK VALUES
£ At 30 June, 2001 25,930,000 3,042,507 6,581,102 10,084,244 12,943,380 1,071,412 59,652,645
j‘%
§ At 30 June, 2000 25,250,000 2,739,076 5588424 5,265,387 13,625,710 1,339,264 57,807,861
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Tools and Motor
properties improvements  equipment  machinery moulds vehicles Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
THE COMPANY
CosT
At 1 July, 2000 - - 459,199 - - - 459,199
Additions - - 32,248 - - - 32,248
Transfer to a subsidiary - - {491,447} - - - (491,447}
At 30 June, 2001 - - - - - - -
DEPRECIATION
At 1 July, 2000 - - 122,952 - - - 122,952
Provided for the year - - 66,859 - - - 66,859
Eliminated on transfer to
a subsidiary - - (189,811) - - - (189,811)
At 30 June, 2001 - - - - - - -
NET BOOK VALUES
At 30 June, 2001 - - - - - - -
At 30 June, 2000 - - 336,247 - - - 336,247

The net book value of the leasehold properties at 30 June, 2001 included an amount of HK$5,930,000
(2000: HK$8,250,000) in respect of properties situated in Hong Kong which are held under medium-
term leases and an amount of HK$20,000,000 (2000: HK$21,000,000) in respect of a building situated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") which is held for use by the Group for the remaining term
of 20 years. The leasehold properties were valued at 30 June, 2001 by AA Property Services Limited, a

firm of property consultants, on an open market value basis.

Had the leasehold properties been carried at historical cost less depreciation, their aggregate carrying
amount would have been stated at approximately HK$12,966,000 (2000: HK$13,530,000).

At 30 June, 2001, the net book value of furniture, fixtures and equipment held under hire purchase
contracts amounted to approximately HK$2,430,000 (2000: HK$433,000).

w
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13. Interests in Subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost

Net amounts due from subsidiaries, less provisions

Less: Net amounts due from subsidiaries receivable within

one year shown under current assets

THE COMPANY

2001 2000

HK$ HK3
43,362,681 43,362,673
52,883,428 68,307,761
96,246,109 111,670,434

(36,174,555) (64,810,446)
60,071,554 46,859,988

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 June, 2001 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Fine Apex Limited
Graceley Enterprises Limited
Hitchman Limited

Modern Gala Industrial
Limited

P.N. Electronic Limited

Quentinbelle Limited

Quicky Technologies Limited
Quidde Limited

Ruian Weiye Technology
{Shenzhen) Limited

Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value
operation of issued shares*
Hong Kong HK3$4
Hong Kong HK$2
Hong Kong HK$150,000
Hong Kong HK$1,500,000
Hong Kong HK$1,000
British Virgin Us$100
Islands ("BVI"/PRC

BV Us$1
Hong Kong HK$2
PRC HK$5,000,000

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued shares
held by the Company

Directly Indirectly

50%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

Property holding

Provision of nominee services

Property holding

Manufacture and sale of
moulds and plastic parts

Inactive

Provision of sub-
contracting services

[nvestment holding
Investment holding
Manufacture and sale of

toys, games and
electronic products
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13. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of

Place of nominal value

incorporation/ Nominal value of issued shares

Name of subsidiary operation of issued shares* held by the Company  Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
Timlex International Hong Kong HKS2 - 100%  Trading in toys and
Limited games and multimedia
electronic products
Victorwood Holdings Hong Kang HK$1,960,000 - 716%  Tradingin
Limited telecommunication
products
Welback Enterprises Hong Kong HK$13,501,000** - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Limited toys and games and
multimedia electronic
products
Welback International BVI HK$16,875,000 100% - Investment holding

Investments Limited

*  All are ordinary share capital unless otherwise stated.

** The issued and fully paid share capital of Welback Enterprises Limited includes 1,350,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$10 each.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

N
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14. Investments in Securities

15.

16.

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS HK$
Other securities, unlisted 2,050,990 2,050,990
Less: Impairment loss recognised (2,050,990) (2,049,990)
- 1,000

In the opinion of the directors, other securities in the amount of HK$2,050,990 (2000: HK$2,049,990)
are determined to be impaired and the amount of impairment loss has been charged to the income

statement.

Amount Due from an Investee Company

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the
directors, the Company will not demand for repayment within twelve months from the balance sheet

date. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current.

Inventories

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS$ HK$
Raw materials 53,519,879 54,318,323
Work in progress 8,895,814 10,519,217
Finished goods , 7,062,037 7,939,500
69,477,730 72,777,040

Included above are raw materials of approximately HK$51,961,000 (2000: HK$52,416,000), work in
progress of approximately HK$8,841,000 (2000: HK$10,501,000) and finished goods of approximately
HK$6,684,000 (2000: HK$6,136,000) which are carried at net realisable value.
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17.

18.

Trade and other Receivables

The Group is in the process of recovering receivable of approximately HK$18 million in respect of goods
shipped to a former customer, North American Foreign Trading Corporation (“NAFT”) in 1996. NAFT has
filed a Statement of Claim with the American Arbitration Association, in which it alleges that the Group
manufactured and sold defective goods to NAFT for which NAFT is entitled to a refund. In addition,
NAFT is claiming damages not exceeding US$5 million. Based on legal advice, the Group is contesting
vigorously the claims brought by NAFT and has counterclaimed for the said sum of HK$18 million and
for other damages. Accordingly, although it is not possible to determine the outcome of these
proceedings with reasonable certainty at this time, no provision has been made in these financial
statements against the Group's exposure in respect of this matter.

At 30 June, 2001, the balances of trade and other receivables included trade receivables of
HK$56,064,517 (2000: HK$93,205,554). An aged analysis of trade receivables prepared on the basis of
sales invoice date is as follows:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS HKE
0 to 90 days 32,600,857 62,780,704
91 days or above 23,463,660 30,424,850
56,064,517 93,205,554

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 — 90 days (2000: 60 - 90 days) to its trade customers,
Trade and other Payables
At 30 June, 2001, the balances of trade and other payables included trade payables of HK$60,609,092

(2000: HK$83,169,190). An aged analysis of trade payables prepared on the basis of supplier invoice
date is as follows:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$S HK$
0 to 90 days 49,330,327 65,008,796
91 days or above 11,278,765 18,159,394
60,609,092 83,169,190
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19. Short-Term Secured Bank Borrowings

Trust receipts and import loans

Portion of secured term loan due within one year (note 20)
Other bank loans

Bank overdrafts

20. Secured Term Loan

The loan is repayable:
- Within one year
— Between one to two years
— Between twao to five years
— Qver five years

Less: Amount due within one year included under short-term
secured bank borrowings in current liabilities (note 19)

Amount due after one year

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS HK$
20,696,257 16,797,231
1,183,469 151,618
2,452,407 1,343,013
2,467,289 -
26,799,422 18,291,862
THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS HK$
1,183,469 151,618
1,262,915 168,745
3,949,337 490,740
18,331,038 -
24,726,759 811,103
(1,183,469) (151,618)
23,543,290 659,485
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21. Obligations under Hire Purchase Contracts

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2001 2000 2001 2000
HKS$ HKS HK$ HK$
THE GROUP
Amounts payable under hire
purchase contracts:
Within one year 1,084,176 162,664 913,466 137,926
In the second to fifth year inclusive; 1,035,003 162,800 964,925 148,106
2,119,179 325,464 1,878,391 286,032
Less: future finance charges (240,788) (39,432) - -
Present value of lease obligations 1,878,391 286,032 1,878,391 286,032
Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months shown
under current liabilities (913,466) (137,926)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 964,925 148,106

Obligations under hire purchase contracts represent hire purchase contracts payable by the Group for
certain of its furniture, fixture and equipment. The average lease term is 3 years. All leases are on fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

)
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22. Convertible Bonds

Principal amount
At the beginning of year
Issue during the year
Redemption during the year

At the end of year

Less: issue costs
At the beginning of year
Incurred during the year

Amortised during the year including amounts

written back upon redemption
At the end of year

Carrying value at 30 June

THE GROUP
AND THE COMPANY

2000

2001

HKS$ HK$
20,000,000 -
- 20,000,000
(20,000,000) -
- 20,000,000

736,499 -

- 818,332
(736,499) (81,833)

- 736,499

- 19,263,501

In April 2000, the Company.issued HK$20,000,000 3% convertible bonds due 31 December, 2001 (the
“Bonds”). The bonds carry a right to convert either in whole or in part any time and from time to time in
amounts of not less than HK$100,000 on each conversion, save that if at any time, the principal
outstanding amount of the Bonds is less than HK$ 100,000, the whole (but not part only) of the principal
outstanding amount of the Bonds may be converted into ordinary shares of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.40 per share (subject to adjustment) at any time up to the maturity date. As a
result of the capital reorganisation as described in note 24, the conversion price of the Bonds has been
adjusted to HK$0.03 per share with effect from 9 May, 2000 in accordance with the provision of the

trust deed constituting the Bonds.

In November 2000 and February 2001 respectively, in order to reduce the interest burden of the Group,
the Group redeemed the outstanding Bonds in the amount of HK$20,000,000.
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23. Deferred Taxation

Balance at 1 July
Credit for the year (note 9}

Balance at 30 June

THE GROUP

2001 2000

HK$ HK$
- 1,150,000
- (1,150,000)

At the balance sheet date, the major components of the net unrecognised deferred taxation asset were

as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HKS HKS$ HKS HK$
Tax effect of timing differences
because of:
Tax losses not yet utilised 14,592,000 10,371,000 275,000 832,000
Difference of tax allowances
and depreciation (2,719,000) (2,580,000) - (54,000)
11,873,000 7,791,000 275,000 778,000

N
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23. Deferred Taxation (continued)

The major components of the net unrecognised deferred taxation (credit) charge for the year were as
follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2001 2000 2001 2000
HKS HKS HKS HKS
Tax effect of timing differences
because of:
Tax losses (arising) utilising {4,221,000) 421,000 557,000 477,000
Difference of tax allowances
and depreciation 139,000 30,000 (54,000) 7,000
(4,082,000) 451,000 503,000 484,000

Deferred taxation asset has not been recognised in the financial statements as it is not certain whether
the benefit will crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Deferred taxation has not been provided on the accumulated surplus arising on the revaluation of
leasehold properties situated in Hong Kong as the profits, if any, arising on future disposal of these
assets would not be subject to taxation. Accordingly, the revaluation does not constitute a timing
difference for tax purposes.

In addition, the Group had a potential deferred taxation liability in respect of land appreciation tax
resulting from revaluation surplus of approximately HK$7,497,000 (2000: HK$7,509,000) arising on the
factory premises situated in the PRC. The Group does not have any intention to dispose of these factory

premises in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no deferred taxation has been provided in respect of the
revaluation surplus of these properties.
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24. Share Capital

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 1 July, 1999
- Increase of authorised share capital by creation of
an additional 1,600,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each

— Subdivision of authorised share capital from
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to
20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at 30 June, 2000 and
30 June, 2001

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 1 July, 1999
~ Issue of shares resulted from exercise of share options
— Issue of shares resulted from private placements
~ Issue of shares resulted from rights issue

- Subdivision of issued and fully paid shares from
HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01 each

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
—Issue of shares resulted from private placements
— Issue of shares resulted from rights issue

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at 30 June, 2000 and 1 July, 2000

- Issue of shares resulted from exercise of share options

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at 30 June, 2001

Number Nominai

of shares value

HK$

400,000,000 40,000,000
1,600,000,000 160,000,000
2,000,000,000 200,000,000
18,000,000,000 -
20,000,000,000 200,000,000
246,550,400 24,655,040
1,200,000 120,000
27,000,000 2,700,000
109,900,160 10,990,016
384,650,560 38,465,056
3,461,855,040 -
3,846,505,600 38,465,056
760,000,000 7,600,000
1,842,602,240 18,426,022
6,449,107,840 64,491,078
41,000,000 410,000
6,490,107,840 64,901,078
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.24. Share Capital (continued)

During the years ended 30 June, 2000 and 30 June, 2001, the following changes in the share capital of
the Company took place:

(@

On 21 February, 2000 and 24 February, 2000, the Company allotted and issued 600,000 shares,
respectively of HK$0.10 each in the Company for cash at HK$0.2784 per share as a result of the
exercise of the Company’s share options granted to a former director,

On 9 March, 2000 and 14 March, 2000, the Company issued 13,500,000 shares, respectively of
HK$0.10 each in the Company to independent investors at a price of HK$0.35 per share by way of
private placement and raised approximately HK$9,450,000.

On 29 March, 2000 and 6 April, 2000, the Company issued 90,519,358 shares and 19,380,802
shares, respectively of HK$0.10 each in the Company to shareholders at a price of HK$0.30 per
share by way of rights issue on the basis of two rights share for every five existing shares then held
by qualifying shareholders and raised approximately HK$32,970,000.

On 5 April, 2000, the Company increased its authorised share capital from HK$40,000,000 to
HK$200,000,000 by the creation of an additional 1,600,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 7 April, 2000, the Company subdivided the existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.10
each into ten shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

On 4 May, 2000, the Company issued 760,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company to
independent investors at a price HK$0.02 per share by way of private placement and raised
approximately HK$15,200,000.

On 22 May, 2000 and 24 May, 2000, the Company issued 1,518,619,852 shares and
323,982,388 shares, respectively of HK$0.01 each in the Company to shareholders at a price of
HK$0.02 per share by way of rights issues on the basis of two rights shares for every five existing
shares then held by qualifying shareholders and raised approximately HK$36,852,000.

On 20 June, 2001, 21 June, 2001 and 26 June, 2001, the Company allotted and issued
41,000,000 shares, respectively of HK$0.01 each in the Company for cash at HK$0.0274 per share
as a result of the exercise of the Company’s share options granted to its employees.

The net proceeds from the rights issue and private placements for year ended 30 June, 2000 were used

to reduce the level of indebtedness of the Group and as general working capital of the Company.

All new shares issued as a result of the exercise of share options, private placements and rights issue

ranked pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.
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25. Share Options

The Company has a share option scheme under which the directors may grant options to employees of
the Company or its subsidiaries, including directors of any of such companies, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The subscription price will not be less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options or the nominal value of the shares, whichever is the higher. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under this scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. An option may be exercised at any time before the expiration
of ten years from the date of adoption of the relevant share option scheme.

A summary of the options outstanding at 1 July, 2000 and 30 June, 2001 under the aforesaid share
option scheme of the Company during the year is as follows:

Number of Number of Number of

Number of  share options  share options  share options Number of

share options granted exercised lapsed  share options

Exercisable outstanding during during during outstanding
on or after Exercise price at 1.2.2000 the year the year the year at 30.6.2001

HKS

27.11.1993 0.0424 12,649,056 - - - 12,649,056
27.11.19%4 0.0424 12,649,056 - - - 12,649,056
1.7.1995 0.0176 25,309,090 - - - 25,309,090
1.7.19% 0.0176 25,309,090 - - - 25,309,090
3.1.2001 0.0135 31,600,000 ~ - - 31,600,000
3.1.2002 0.0135 47 400,000 - - - 47,400,000
4.4.2001 0.0274 - 67,000,000 (41,000,000) - 26,000,000
7.7.2001 0.05%4 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
7.1.2002 0.0594 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000

i
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Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 30 june, 2001

26. Reserves

Asset Capital
Share revaluation  reserveon  Translation Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve consolidation reserve surplus deficit Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK3
THE GROUP
At 1 July, 1999 43651,246 1995514 8850,159 - - (16,257,538 61,200,381
Premium arising on issue
of shares in respect of
- Conversion of share
options 214,080 - - - - - 214,080
- Private placements 14,350,000 - - - - - 14,350,000
- Rights issue 40,406,054 - - - - - 40,406,054
Share issue expenses {4,653,935) - - - - - (4,653935)
Exchange difference on
translation of financiel
statements of overseas
operation - - - 4,172,405 - - 4172,405
Revaluation decrease - (1,343,531) - - - - (1,343531)
Reserves released on disposal
of subsidiaries - (3,498,810} (21992)  {4,172,405) - 3,498,810 (4,194,397)
Net loss for the year - - - - - (22,084251) (22,084251)
At 30 June, 2000 98,967,445 15,114,173 8,828,167 - - (34842979) 83,066,806
Premium arising on issue
of shares in respect of
conversion of share options 713,400 - - - - - 713,400
Revaluation decrease - (2,036871) - - - - (2,036,871
Net loss for the year - - - - - (32,680417) (32,680,417}
At 30 June, 2001 99,680,845 13,077,302 8828167 - - (67,523396) 54,062,918




Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

26. Reserves (continued)

Asset Capital
Share revaluation  reserveon  Translation Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve consolidation reserve surplus deficit Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
THE COMPANY
At 1 uly, 1999 48,651,246 - - - 26487673 (21,997.452) 53,141,467
Premium arising on issue
of shares in respect of
- Conversion of share
options 214,080 - - - - - 214,080
- Private placements 14,350,000 - - - - - 14,350,000
- Rights issue 40,406,054 - - - - - 40,406,054
Share issue expenses (4,653,935} - - - - - (4,653,935)
Net loss for the year
{note 10) - - - - - (14513584} (14,513,584}
At 30 June, 2000 98,967,445 - - - 26487673 (36511,036) 88,944,082
Premium arising on issue
of shares in respect of
conversion of share options 713,400 - - - - - 713,400
Net loss for the year (note 10} - - - - - (44696,233) (44,696,233
At 30 June, 2001 99,680,845 - - - 26487673 (81,207,269) 44961249

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of
Welback International Investments Limited at the date on which its shares were acquired by the
Company and the nominal amount of the Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is also available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

fn the opinion of the directors, the Company did not have any reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 30 June, 2001 and 30 June, 2000.
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For the year ended 30 June, 2001

27. Reconciliation of Loss before Taxation to Net Cash Qutflow from

Welback Holdings Limited e annual report 2001

Operating Activities

2001 2000
HKS$ HKS$
Loss before taxation (32,578,607) (23,121,725)
Interest income (2,034,003) (1,045,601)
Interest expenses 3,744,744 2,662,425
Dividend income (8.000) -
Depreciation 8,472,533 8,062,818
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 524,053 52,610
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (635,509)
Deficit arising on revaluation of leasehold properties 30,448 -
Provision for doubtful debts 5,014,790 7,659,953
Provision for impairment loss of
- Investments in securities 1,000 351,000
— Amount due from an investee company 100,000 1,360,000
Decrease {increase) in inventories 3,299,310 (16,426,812)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables 20,407,915 (27,373,976)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables (32,437,791) 4,647,310
Net cash outflow from operating activities (25,463,608) (43,807,507)




turnover and operating results.

Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 30 June, 2001
28. Purchase of a Subsidiary
2001 2000
HK$ HK$
Net assets acquired:
Trade and other receivables 1,444,531 -
Property held for sale 36,556,286 -
Bank balances and cash 21,000 -
Trade and other payables (21,700) -
Secured bank borrowings (24,150,000) -
Loans payable (14,000,000) -
Minority interests 149,885 -
Net assets 2 -
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration paid 2 -
Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in connection with the purchase of a subsidiary:
Cash consideration paid (2) -
Bank balances and cash acquired 21,000 -
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in connection
with the purchase of a subsidiary 20,998 -
The subsidiary purchased during the year did not have any significant impact on the Group’s cash flows,
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Notes to the Financial Statement
For the year ended 30 June, 2001
29. Disposal of Subsidiaries
2001 2000
HKS HK$
Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment - 3,895,493
inventories - 491,162
Trade and other receivables - 3,859,907
Bank balances and cash - 76,541
Trade and other payables - (2,005,509)
Other long-term payables - (1,258,706)
Net assets - 5,058,888
Goodwill realised on disposal - (21,992)
Translation reserve realised on disposal - (4,172,405)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - 635,509
- 1,500,000
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration received - 10,000
Deferred consideration - 1,490,000
- 1,500,000
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
connection with the disposal of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration received - 10,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of - (76,541)
- {66,541)

The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 30 June, 2000 contributed HK$222,000 to the Group's
net operating cash outflows and utilised HK$285,000 in respect of financing activities.
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30. Analysis of Changes in Financing during the Year

Share
tapital and
premium
HKS

At1July, 1999
Issue of shares
Expenses incurred in

connection with the

Issue of shares
Proceeds from issue of ,

convertible bonds -
Inception of fire purchase

contracts -
Other new borrowings raised -
Net inrease in trust

receipts and import loans -
Repayment of term loans -
Repayment of obligations

under hire purchases -
Repayment of other borrowings -
Expenses incurred in

connection with the issue

of convertible bonds -
Amortisation of issue costs -
Exchange difference on

translation -
Eliminated on disposal of

subsidiaries -
Profit shared by minority

interests -

73,306,286
94,806,172

(4,653,935)

Convertible
bonds
HKS HKS

951,003

20,000,000 -

(818,332) -
81,833 -

Trust
receipts and

Termloans  import loans

HK$

830,676

Obligations

under hire
purchase Other
contracts  horrowings
HKS HKS

175,595 4777778

246,439 -
- 5,000,000

Minority  Other long-
interests term payables

HKS
247,981

350,735

HKS
1,255,083

3,623

(1,258,706)

At 30 June, 2000
Issue of shares
Inception of hire purchase

contracts -
Other new barrowings raised
Net increase in trust

receipts and import loans -
Redemption of convertible

bonds -
Repayment of term Ioans -
Repayment of obligations

under hire purchases -
Amortisation of issue costs -
Purchase of a subsidiary -
Profit shared by minority

interests -

163,458,523
1,123,400

19,263,501

{20,000,000) -
- {234,344)

736,499 -

830,676

4,047,331

286,032 -

2,472,240 -
- 5,000,000

598,716

{149,885)

101,810

At 30 June, 2001

164,581,923

- 24726759

4,878,007

1878,391 6,000,000

550,641

unl
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31. Analysis of the Balances of Cash and Cash Equivalents

2001 2000
HKS$ HK$
Time deposits, bank balances and cash i 25,759,165 68,975,131
Trust receipts and import loans, with maturities
within three months {15,818,250) (15,966,555)
Other bank loans, with maturities within three months (2,452,407) (1,343,013)
Bank overdrafts {2,467,289) -
5,021,219 51,665,563

32. Major Non-cash Transaction

During the year, the Group entered into a hire purchase contract in respect of plant and equipment with
a total capital value at the inception of the contract of HK$2,472,240 (2000: HK$246,439).

33. Capital Commitments

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HK$ HK$
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
plant and eguipment:
Authorised but not contracted for - 369,000
Contracted but not provided for in the financial statements 4,251,000 2,686,000
4,251,000 3,055,000

The Company did not have any capital commitments at 30 June, 2001 and 30 June, 2000.
34. Retirement Benefit Scheme

Prior to 1 December, 2000, the Group operated a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
("Defined Contribution Scheme”) for its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme
were held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Where there are employees who leave the Defined Contribution Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the amount of the forfeited contributions would be used to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group. The Defined Contribution Scheme was terminated on 1 December, 2000.
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34. Retirement Benefit Scheme (continued)

35.

36.

37.

Effective 1 December, 2000, the Group joined the MPF Scheme for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

Operating Lease Arrangements

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS HK$
Within one year 1,941,185 2,881,717
In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,374,454 397,061
3,315,639 3,278,778

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties.
Leases and rentals payment are negotiated and fixed at an average term of two years.

The Company did not have any operating lease commitments at 30 June, 2001 and 2000.
Pledge of Assets
At 30 June, 2001, the Group pledged leasehold properties with a net book value of HK$25,930,000

(2000: HK$8,250,000) and a property held for resale of HK$36,556,286 (2000: Nil) to secure credit
facilities granted to the Group.

Contingent Liabilities
THE GROUP
2001 2000
HKS HKS
Bills discounted with recourse 6,897,904 2,059,098

un
O

Welback Holdings Limited * annual report 2001




Welback Holdings Limited » annual report 2001

Notes to the Financial Statement

For the year ended 30 June, 2001

37.

38.

39.

Contingent Liabilities (continued)

At 30 June, 2001, the Company provided corporate guarantees amounting to approximately
HK$42,000,000 (2000: HK$42,000,000) to various banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its
subsidiaries. The aggregate amount utilised in respect of the banking facilities granted amounted to
approximately HK$25,616,000 at 30 June, 2001 (2000: HK$18,140,000).

Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Name of related party Nature of transaction 2001 2000
HKS HK$
Ho, Wong & Wong Legal and professional fees
paid by the Group - 85,499
William W. L. Fan & Co Legal and professional fees
paid by the Group 606,060 334,918
Dr. Liang Ping Project development and
consultancy fees paid by the Group 360,000 380,000

Mr. Wong Chun Nam, Duffy, an independent non-executive director of the Company, is a partner of
Messrs. Ho, Wong & Wong, a firm of solicitors.

Mr. Fan Wai Lim, William, the company secretary of the Company, is a partner of William W. L. Fan &
Co, a firm of solicitors.

Dr. Liang Ping is the wife of Dr. Xu Yang Sheng, a non-executive director of the Company.

The pricing of the transactions were agreed between the Group and the related parties with reference to
market price for similar transactions.

Post Balance Sheet Event

On 16 July, 2001, the Group entered into an agreement with Wang Cheng Chien, Lee Kim, Ke Shun
Chih, Wang Li Mei, Chang Sei Wang, Chang Su Chen, Yu Adam, Lin Bernie and Yu Ruben (the
“Vendors”) in respect of the acquisition of a 25% interest in Gen-Wan Technology Corp. (“Gen Wan")
for cash consideration of HK$60,000,000. Gen Wan is established in Taiwan and principally engaged in
the development of Wideband Code Division Multiple Access (an Internet technology which allows
simultaneous transmission of information over a common channel by assigning each of the signals an
unique code during transmission) and Orthogonal Frequency Division Multiplexing (an Internet
technology which allows simultaneous transmission of information over a common channel by assigning
each of the signals an unigue code during the transmission) and the sales of related system networks
and products.




Financial Summary

Results

Turnover
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss) profit before taxation

Taxation (charge) credit

(Loss) profit before minority interests

Minority interests

Net (loss) profit for the year

Assets and Liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Minority interests

Shareholders’ funds

Year ended 30 June,

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
468,592 505,261 258,157 348,768 382,764

9,481 3,321 - - -
478,073 508,582 258,157 348,768 382,764

20,906 14,340 (27,346) (23,121} (32,579)

(1,361) (450) - 1,388 -

19,545 13,890 (27,346) (21,733) (32,579)

152 - (124) (351) (102)

19,697 13,890 (27,470) (22,084) (32,681)
At 30 June,

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
272,101 214,232 216,955 301,834 255,497
169,481 105,354 130,852 148,678 135,982
102,620 108,878 86,103 153,156 119,515

- - (248) (598) (551)
102,620 108,878 85,855 152,558 118,964

-
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WELBACK HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Form of proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting te be held on Friday, 23 November 2001 and at any
adjournment thereof

DWe (Note 1) . e e e e e

being the registered holder(s) of (Note 2) . . ... .. . shares
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of WELBACK HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”), HEREBY APPOINT (Note 3)
THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING OF . ... oottt ettt et et e e e

as my/our proxy to attend on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Tang Room, 3rd
Floor, Sheraton Hong Kong Hotel & Towers, 20 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Friday, 23 November
2001 at 9:30 a.m. (and at any adjournment thereof) for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the Resolutions
as set out in the Notice convening the said Meeting and at such Meeting (and at any adjournment thereof) to vote for me/us
and in my/our name(s) in respect of the Resolutions as indicated below (Note 4).

RESCLUTIONS FOR AGAINST

1. To receive and consider the Audited Financial Statements and the Reports of the
Directors and of the Auditors for the year ended 30 June 2001.

2. (i) Tore-elect the following Directors:
(a) Mr Clive William Baker Oxley (a) (a)
(b) Mr Wong Chun Nam, Duffy (b) (b)

(ii) To authorise the Board of Directors to fix Directors’ remuneration and appoint
additional Directors.

3. To re-appoint Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as Auditors and to authorise the
Directors to fix Auditors’ remuneration.

4. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue, allot and deal with additional
shares not exceeding 20% of the existing issued share capital.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase the Company’s shares not
exceeding 10% of the existing issued share capital.

6. To extend the general mandate granted to the Directors under resolution 4 by the
number of shares repurchased by the Company under resolution 5.

7. To adopt a new share option scheme of the Company,

Dated: ... ,2001. Signature (Note 5). ... ... ... . ..

{. Full name(s) and address(es) to be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

2. Please insert the number of shares of HK$0.01 each registered in your name(s). If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all
the shares of the Company registered in your names).

.3 If any proxy other than the Chairman is preferred, strike out “THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING or” and insert the name and address of proxy
desired in the space provided. IF NO NAME IS INSERTED, THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING WILL ACT AS PROXY. ANY ALTERATION
MADE TO THIS FORM OF PROXY MUST BE INITIALLED BY THE PERSON WHO SIGNS IT.

4. IMPORTANT: IF YOU WISH TO VOTE FOR A RESOLUTION, TICK THE APPROPRIATE BOX MARKED “FOR”. IF YOU WISH TO VOTE
AGAINST ANY RESOLUTION, TICK THE APPROPRIATE BOX MARKED “AGAINST”. Failure to complete the boxes will entitle your proxy to
cast his votes at his discretion. Your proxy will also be entitled to vote at his discretion on any resolution properly put to the meeting other than those
referred to in the Notice convening the meeting.

5. This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing or, in the case of a corporation, must be either executed under its
common seal or under the hand of any officer or attorney or other person duly authorised.
6. Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such

share as if he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such joint holders be present at the meeting, either personally or by proxy, then the
person so present whose name stands first on the register of members in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

7. To be valid, this form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy
thereof, must be deposited at the Company’s Principal Place of Business at Unit B on the 14th Floor, Waylee Industrial Centre, Block 1, 30-38 Tsuen
King Circuit, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting (as
the case may be).

8. The proxy need not be a member of the Company, but must attend the meeting in person to represent you.

9. Completion and delivery of this form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting if you so wish.
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APPENDIX I SUMMARY OF THE PRINCIPAL TERMS OF
THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(cc) Any alterations to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme which
are of a material nature or any change to the terms of options granted must be
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting, except where
the alterations take effect automatically under the existing terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

(dd) The amended terms of the Share Option Scheme or the options must still
comply with the relevant requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

(ee) Any change to the authority of the Directors or the scheme administrators in
relation to any alteration to the terms of the Share Option Scheme shall be
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

PRESENT STATUS OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(1) Application for approval
Application will be made to the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange for the
approval of the Share Option Scheme and the subsequent granting of Options under the
Share Option Scheme and for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Shares which
may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Options.

(ii) Grant of option

As at the Latest Practicable Date, no Option has been granted or agreed to be granted

under the Share Option Scheme.




APPENDIX I SUMMARY OF THE PRINCIPAL TERMS OF
THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Where the Company cancels any options granted and issues new options to the same
grantee, the issue of such new options may only be made under a share option scheme
with available unissued options (excluding cancelled options) within the limit approved by
the Shareholders as referred to in paragraph (iii) above.

(xix) Termination of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at any time
terminate the Share Option Scheme and in such event no further options shall be offered
but in all other respects the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options (to the extent not
already exercised) granted prior to the termination or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme. Options (to the extent not
already exercised) granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

(xx) Rights are personal to the grantee

An option is personal to the grantee and shall not be transferable or assignable.
(xxi)Lapse of option

An option shall lapse automatically (to the extent not already exercised) on the
earliest of:

(aa) the expiry of the period referred to in paragraph (vi); and

(bb) the expiry of the periods or dates referred to in paragraphs (xii), (xiii), (xiv),
(xv), (xvi) and (xvii).

(xxii) Others

(aa) The Share Option Scheme is conditional on the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange granting approval of Share Option Scheme and any options which
may be granted thereunder and the listing of and permission to deal in any
Shares which may be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Options.

(bb) The terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme relating to the matters set
out in rule 17.03 of the Listing Rules shall not be altered to the advantage of
grantees of the options except with the approval of the shareholders in general
meeting.

~11-




APPENDIX I SUMMARY OF THE PRINCIPAL TERMS OF
THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

of the Company. If such offer becomes or is declared unconditional, the grantee shall,
notwithstanding any other terms on which his options were granted, be entitled to exercise
the option (to the extent not already exercised) to its full extent or to the extent specified
in the grantee’s notice to the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme at any time thereafter up to the close of such offer (or any revised offer) or
the record date for entitlements under scheme of arrangement, as the case may be.

(xvi)Rights on winding up

In the event of an effective resolution being proposed for the voluntary winding-up
of the Company during the option period, the grantee may, subject to the provisions of all
applicable laws, by notice in writing to the Company at any time prior to the date on
which such resolution is passed, exercise his option (to the extent not already exercised)
either to its full extent or to the extent specified in such notice in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme and shall accordingly be entitled, in respect of the
Shares falling to be allotted and issued upon the exercise of his option, to participate in
the distribution of the assets of the Company available in liquidation pari passu with the
Shares in issue on the day prior to the date of such resolution.

(xvii) Adjustments to the subscription price

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure (including a capitalisation issue,
rights issue, sub-division or consolidation of Shares or reduction of capital) of the
Company whilst an option remains exercisable, such corresponding alterations (if any)
certified by the auditors for the time being of or an independent financial adviser to the
Company as fair and reasonable will be made to the number or nominal amount of Shares
the subject matter of the Share Option Scheme and the option so far as unexercised and/or
the option price and/or the method of exercise of the option concerned, provided that (i)
any adjustments shall give a grantee the same proportion of the issued share capital to
which he was entitled prior to such alteration; (ii) the issue of Shares or other securities of
the Group as consideration in a transaction shall not be regarded as a circumstance
requiring adjustment; and (iii) no alteration shall be made the effect of which would be to
enable a Share to be issued at less than its nominal value. In addition, in respect of any
such adjustments, other than any made on a capitalisation issue, such auditors or
independent financial adviser must confirm to the Directors in writing that the
adjustments satisfy the requirements of the relevant provision of the Listing Rules.

(xvili) Cancellation of options
Where it is desired that any options granted but not exercised should be cancelled,

the Board may effect such cancellation in a manner that complies with any legal
requirements for cancellation.

~10-




APPENDIX I SUMMARY OF THE PRINCIPAL TERMS OF
THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

not be exercisable unless the Directors otherwise determine in which event the grantee
may exercise the option (to the extent not already exercised) in whole or in part within
such period as the Directors may determine following the date of such cessation, which
will be taken to be the last day on which the grantee was at work with the Group or the
Invested Entity whether salary is paid in lieu of notice or not.

(xiif)Rights on death, ill-health or retirement

If the grantee of an option is an Eligible Employee and ceases to be an Eligible
Employee by reason of his death, disability (all evidenced to the satisfaction of the
Board), ill-health or retirement in accordance with his contract of employment before
exercising the option in full and none of the events which would be a ground for
termination of his employment under sub-paragraph (xiv) arises, the grantee, or as
appropriate, his personal representative(s), may exercise the option (to the extent not
already exercised) in whole or in part within a period of 12 months following the date of
cessation which date shall be the last day on which the grantee was at work with the
Group or the Invested Entity whether salary is paid in lieu of notice or not or such longer
period as the Board may determine.

(xiv) Rights on dismissal

If the grantee of an option is an Eligible Employee and ceases to be an Eligible
Employee by reason of the termination of his employment on the grounds that he has been
guilty of persistent or serious misconduct, or has committed any act of bankruptcy or has
become insolvent or has made any arrangement or composition with his creditors
generally, or has been convicted of any criminal offence involving his integrity or honesty
or any ground on which an employer would be entitled to terminate his employment at
common law or pursuant to any applicable laws or under the grantee’s service contract
with the Company or the relevant subsidiary or the Invested Entity. A resolution of the
Board or the board of directors of the relevant subsidiary or the Invested Entity to the
effect that the employment of the grantee has or has not been terminated on one or more
of the grounds specified in this paragraph shall be conclusive.

(xv) Rights on a general offer, a compromise or arrangememnt

If a general (or partial) offer (whether by way of take-over offer, share repurchase
offer, or scheme of arrangement or otherwise in like manner) is made to all the holders of
the Shares (or all such holders other than the offeror and/or any person acting in concert
with the offeror), the Company shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that such
offer is extended to all the grantees on the same terms, mutatis mutandis, and assuming
that they will become, by the exercise in full of the options granted to them, shareholders
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on or after the Exercise Date other than any dividend or other distribution
previously declared or recommended or resolved to be paid or made if the
record date therefore shall be before the Exercise Date. A Share allotted upon
the exercise of an option shall not carry voting rights until the completion of the
registration of the grantee as the holder thereof.

(bb) Unless the context otherwise requires, references to “Shares” in this paragraph
include references to shares in the ordinary equity share capital of the Company
of such nominal amount as shall result from a sub-division, consolidation, re-
classification or reduction of the share capital of the Company from time to
time.

(x) Restrictions on the time of grant of options

No offer for grant of options shall be made after a price sensitive event has occurred
or a price sensitive matter has been the subject of a decision until such price sensitive
information has been published in the newspapers. In particular, during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding the earlier of (i) the date of the meeting of
the Directors for the approval of the Company’s interim or annual results, and (ii) the last
date on which the Company must publish its interim or annual results announcement
under its listing agreement, and ending on the date of the announcement of the results, no
option may be granted.

The Directors may not grant any option to a participant who is a Director during the
periods or times in which Directors are prohibited from dealing in shares pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies prescribed by
the Listing Rules or any corresponding code or securities dealing restrictions adopted by
the Company.

(xt) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing
on the date on which the Share Option Scheme becomes unconditional.

(xif) Rights on ceasing employment

If the grantee of an option is an Eligible Employee and ceases to be an Eligible
Employee for any reason other than death, disability, ill-health or retirement in accordance
with his contract of employment or for serious misconduct or other grounds referred to in
sub-paragraph (xiv) below before exercising his option in full, the option (to the extent

not already exercised) will lapse after one (1) month from the date of cessation and will
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meeting provided that his intention to do so has been stated in the circular. Any
vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such options must be taken on
a poll. Any change in the terms of options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates must be approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.

(vi) Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the date of the offer
of grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to each
grantee, which period may commence on a day after the date upon which the offer for the
grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

(vii) Performance targets

Unless the Directors have otherwise determined and stated in the offer of the grant of
options to a grantee, a grantee is not required to achieve any performance targets before
any options granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

(viii)Subsecription price for Shares

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (il) the average closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares. A nominal
consideration of $1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

{ix) Ranking of Shares

(aa) Shares allotted upon the exercise of an option will be subject to all the
provisions of the articles of association of the Company and will rank pari passu
in all respects with the fully paid Shares in issue or the date on which the
option is duly exercised (the “Exercise Date”) and accordingly will entitle the
holders thereof to participate in all dividends or other distributions paid or made
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(dd) Without prejudice to (cc) above, the Company may issue a circular to its
shareholders and seek separate shareholders’ approval in general meeting to
grant options beyond the 10 per cent. limit to participants specifically identified
by the Company before such approval is sought.

(iv) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1| per cent. of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the
Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
shall be subject to the issue of a circular to the shareholders and the shareholders’
approval in general meeting of the Company with such participant and his associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.

{(v) Grant of options to connected persons

(aa) Any grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) must be approved by independent
non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is the grantee of the options).

(bb) Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or any of their respective associates, would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1 per cent. of the Shares in issue; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at the
date of each grant, in excess of $5 million;

such further grant of options must be approved by shareholders of the Company.
The Company must send a circular to the shareholders. All connected persons of
the Company must abstain from voting at such general meeting, except that any
connected person may vote against the relevant resolution at the general
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme which is
proposed to be approved at the AGM:

(1) Purpose of the scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

(ii) Whe may join

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite any directors (including non-
executive directors) and employees of the Company (the “Eligible Employees”™), any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity interest

to take up options to subscribe for Shares:

The basis of eligibility of any of the above class of participants to the grant of any
options shall be determined by the Directors from time to time.

(iif) Maximum number of Shares

(aa) The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of any outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30 per
cent. of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

(bb) The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
(excluding, for this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group and 145,316,292 outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Existing Scheme) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10 per cent. of the Shares in issue at the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme (“General Scheme Limit”). v v

(cc) Without prejudice to (dd) below, the Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting to refresh the General Scheme Limit provided
that the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not exceed 10 per cent. of the Shares in issue as at
the date of approval of the limit and for the purpose of calculating the limit,
options (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group)
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit
as “refreshed”.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

It is proposed that at the AGM of the Company to be held on 23 November, 2001,
resolution will be proposed to adopt a new share option scheme. A form of proxy for use at the
AGM is enclosed. Whether or not you are able to attend and vote at the AGM, you are
requested to complete the enclosed proxy form and return it to the principal office in Hong
Kong of Welback Holdings Limited as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the AGM. Completion and return of the proxy form will
not preclude you from subsequently attending and voting at the AGM or any adjourned meeting
should you so wish.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of
the information contained in this circular and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries,
that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission of which
would make any statement herein misleading.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors believe that the proposal for the adoption of the Share Option Scheme is in
the interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Directors
recommend that the Shareholders should vote in favour of the resolution relating to the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme as set out in Appendix I to this circular at the AGM.

Yours faithfully,

By order of the Board
Welback Holdings Limited
Lee Chun Kwok
Chairman
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EXISTING SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Existing Scheme was adopted and approved by Shareholders on 20 May, 1992. As at
the Latest Practicable Date, there were 145,316,292 outstanding options granted under the
Existing Scheme and yet to be exercised. Immediately upon adoption of the Share Option
Scheme, which is expected to be on 23 November, 2001, the Board will terminate the operation
of the Existing Scheme and no further options will be offered but in all other respects the
provisions of the Existing Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and the aforesaid
outstanding options remain valid and exercisable up to the earliest of (i) 19 May, 2002; and (ii)
the expiry of the period as referred to the provision of the Existing Scheme.

THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group. Taking into
consideration that (a) the business nature of the Group; (b) the fluctuations in the electronics
industry and market risks relating to the Group; and (c) the fact that the comparable data
required for calculation of the value of the outstanding options will not be representative of the
Group, the Directors consider that the disclosure of value of the outstanding options granted
pursuant to the Existing Scheme and any options to be granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme as at the Latest Practicable Date is not appropriate.

Subject to the obtaining of Shareholders’ approval with respect to the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme at the AGM, the total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
and 145,316,292 outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised pursuant to the Existing
Scheme) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10 per cent. of the Shares in issue at the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme.

Application will be made to the Stock Exchange for the approval of the Share Option
Scheme and the subsequent granting of options thereunder and for the listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

A copy of the Share Option Scheme will be available for-inspection at the principal place
of business of the Company at Unit B on the 14th Floor, Waylee Industrial Centre, Block 1, 30-
38 Tsuen King Circuit, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong during normal business hours
from 22 October, 2001 up to and including 23 November, 2001 and at the AGM.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company will publish in the
newspapers an announcement on the outcome of the AGM in respect of the resolution relating
to the adoption of the Share Option Scheme on the business day following the date of the
AGM.
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(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Executive Directors:
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Tsuen Wan

New Territories
Hong Kong

17 October, 2001
To the Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,
ADOPTION QF THE NEW SHARE OPTICON SCHEME
INTRODUCTION

The Board noted that the Stock Exchange had amended the requirements for share option
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and such changes came into effect on 1
September, 2001. In compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules, the Board proposes
to adopt a new share option scheme with amended terms to conform with the new requirements
as stipulated under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of this circular is (i) to inform Shareholders of the terms of the Share Option
Scheme proposed to be adopted at the AGM; and (i1) to seek the Shareholders’ approval of the
resolution relating to the adoption of the Share Option Scheme to be proposed at the AGM. A
summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is set out in Appendix I headed
“Summary of the Principal Terms of the Share Option Scheme” to this circular.




DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the

Sfollowing meanings:

“AGM”

“associlate”

. “Board”

“Company”

“Directors”

“Existing Scheme”

“Group”

“Hong Kong”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Share Option Scheme”
or “Scheme”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”
“Stock Exchange”

‘£$”

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and
held at the Tang Room, 3rd Floor, Sheraton Hong Kong Hotel
& Towers, 20 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
at 9:30a.m. on 23 November, 2001 to consider, if thought fit, to
approve, inter alia, any resolution relating to the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme

shall bear the meaning as defined in the Listing Rules
board of Directors

Welback Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated
in Bermuda with liability, whose securities are listed on the
Stock Exchange

the directors, including the independent non-executive directors,
of the Company

the existing share option scheme adopted and approved by
Shareholders on 20 May, 1992

the Company and the subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China

12 October, 2001, being the latest practicable date prior to the
printing of this circular for ascertaining certain information
contained in this circular

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

the new share option scheme proposed to be adopted by the
Company on 23 November, 2001, the principal terms of which
are summarised in Appendix I headed “Summary of the
Principal Terms of the Share Option Scheme”

Share(s) of $0.01 each of the Company

holder(s) of the Share(s)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
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THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular, you should consult your stockbroker
or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or
other professional adviser.

If yeu have sold all your shares in Welback Holdings Limited, you should at once hand this
circular to the purchaser or to the bank or stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale
was effected for transmission to the purchaser.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this circular.

T TR ‘d:@

WELBACK HOLDINGS

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

ADOPTION OF THE NEW SHARE CPTION SCHEME

A letter from the board of directors of Welback Holdings Limited is set out on pages 2 to 4 of
this circular.

A notice convening an annual general meeting of Welback Holdings Limited to be held at the
Tang Room, 3rd Floor, Sheraton Hong Kong Hotel & Towers, 20 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong at 9:30a.m. on 23 November, 2001 is set out on pages 3 to 5 of the
accompanying annual report of Welback Holdings Limited. A form of proxy for use at the
annual general meeting is also enclosed. Whether or not you are able to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting, you are requested to complete the enclosed proxy form and return it to
the principal office in Hong Kong of Welback Holdings Limited as soon as possible and in any
event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the annual general meeting.
Completion and return of the proxy form will not preclude you from subsequently attending
and voting at the annual general meeting or any adjourned meeting should you so wish.

17 October, 2001




The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this circular.

WELBACK HOLDINGS LIMITED |

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

o
Directors: Registered Office: 2
Clarendon House ™
Executive: Church Street P
Lee Chun Kwok (Chairman) Hamilton HM 11 -
Fong Wing Seng (Managing Director) Bermuda =%
Clive William Baker Oxley, OBE, ED. @
.
Non-Executive: Principal Office:
Xu Yang Sheng Unit B on the 14th Floor
Chan Mo Po, Paul* Waylee Industrial Centre, Block 1
Wong Chun Nam, Duffy* 30-38 Tsuen King Circuit
Tsuen Wan
*Independent non-executive directors New Territories
Hong Kong

17 October 2001

To the shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

GENERAL MANDATES FOR THE REPURCHASE BY THE COMPANY
OF ITS OWN SHARES AND ISSUE OF NEW SHARES

GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES

At the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 23 November 2001 (the
“Annual General Meeting”), a resolution will be proposed to approve the grant of a general
mandate to the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) to issue and allot new shares of
HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company up to the aggregate of (i) 20 per cent of the
Company’s issued share capital as at the date on which the relevant resolution is passed and (i1)
the number of shares repurchased under the Securities Buyback Mandate referred to below. The
Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans to issue any new shares.

SECURITIES BUYBACK MANDATE

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”) as amended (the “Listing Rules™) permit listed companies to
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repurchase their own securities, subject to certain restrictions. At the Annual General Meeting,
an ordinary resolution will be proposed to approve the grant of a general mandate to the
Directors to repurchase up to 10 per cent of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date
on which the relevant resolution is passed (the “Repurchase Proposal”). The Company is
required by the particular rules in the Listing Rules regulating repurchases of securities (the
“Securities Buyback Rules”) to send to sharcholders an explanatory statement containing all
the information reasonably necessary to enable them to make an informed decision on whether
to vote for or against the Repurchase Proposal. Such information is provided below.

1. Share Capital

As at 12 October 2001, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this document, the issued share capital of the Company comprised 6,535,707,840
shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares™). Subject to the passing of the relevant ordinary
resolution at the Annual General Meeting and on the basis that no further Shares are
issued or repurchased prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting, the Company
will be allowed to repurchase up to a maximum of 653,57C,784 Shares.

2. Reasons for repurchases

Although the Directors have no present intention of repurchasing the Shares, they
believe that the Repurchase Proposal is in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders. Such repurchases may, depending on market conditions and funding
arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net value of the Company’s
Shares and its assets and/or its earnings per Share and will only be made when the
Directors believe that such repurchases will benefit the Company and its shareholders.

3. Funding of repurchases

In repurchasing the Shares, the Company may only apply funds legally available
for such purpose in accordance with the memorandum of association and bye-laws of
the Company and the applicable laws of Bermuda.

The Company is empowered by its memorandum of association and bye-laws to
purchase its shares. Bermuda law provides that the amount of capital paid in
connection with a share repurchase may only be paid out of either the capital paid up
on the relevant shares, or the funds of the Company that would otherwise be available
for dividend or distribution or the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares made for such
purpose. The amount of premium (if any) payable on a purchase may only be paid out
of funds of the Company that would otherwise be available for dividend or
distribution or out of the share premium account of the Company before the shares are
purchased.

There might be a material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing
position of the Company (based on the financial position of the Company as at 30
June 2001) in the event that the mandate to repurchase the Shares is exercised in full
at any time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the Directors do not
propose to exercise the mandate to such extent as would, in the circumstances, have a
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material adverse effect on the working capital requirements of the Company or the
gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are from time to time appropriate
for the Company.

4, General

None of the Directors, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, nor any of their associates have any present intention, if the Repurchase
Proposal is approved, to sell any of their Shares to the Company.

The Directors have undertaken to the Exchange that so far as the same may be
applicable, they will exercise the repurchase mandate in accordance with the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws of Bermuda.

The Company has not repurchased any of its securities on the Exchange since the
listing of its securities in June 1992.

If as a result of the exercise of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the
repurchase mandate, a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the
Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition of voting rights for
- the purposes of Rule 32 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the
“Takeover Code”). Accordingly, a shareholder, or a group of shareholders acting in
concert, could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to
make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeover Code for all
Shares not already owned by such shareholder or group of shareholders.

As at 12 October 2001 (being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this document), Messrs Lee Chun Kwok and Fong Wing Seng, Directors of the
Company, were interested in 2,071,503,878 and 2,071,503,878 Shares respectively
(representing approximately 31.70 per cent and 31.70 per cent of the issued Shares
respectively). Each of the interests of Messrs Lee Chun Kwok and Fong Wing Seng
included a joint interest of 2,071,503,868 Shares (representing approximately 31.70
per cent of the issued Shares). In the event that the Directors exercised in full the
power to repurchase the Shares in accordance with the terms of the ordinary
resolution to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting, the shareholding interests of
Messrs Lee Chun Kwok and Fong Wing Seng would be increased to approximately
35.22 per cent and 35.22 per cent of the issued Shares respectively. If so, the
Directors will take necessary steps to comply with the Listing Rules and the Takeover
Code. The Directors do not intend to exercise the power to repurchase the Shares
pursuant to the repurchase mandate to the extent that such repurchase would result in
the number of the listed Shares which are in the hands of the public falling below 25
per cent of the listed Shares of the Company.

No connected persons of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) have
notified the Company that they have a present intention to sell any of their Shares to
the Company, or have undertaken not to do so in the event that the Company is
authorised to make purchases of the Shares.




5. Share prices

The highest and lowest prices at which the Company’s Shares have been traded
on the Exchange during each of the previous twelve months from October 2000 to
September 2001 are as follows:

Highest Lowest
HK$ HKS$

2000
October 0.053 0.040
November 0.047 0.034
December 0.044 0.035

2001
January 0.041 0.026
February 0.040 0.030
March 0.039 0.026
April ’ 0.034 0.024
May 0.038 0.023
June | 0.055 0.017
July 0.089 0.047
August 0.085 0.058
September 0.075 0.048

PROXY ARRANGEMENT

A form of proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting is enclosed with the Annual
Report for the year ended 30 June 2001. To be valid, the form of proxy must be completed in
accordance with the instructions printed thereon and deposited, together with the power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power of attorney or authority at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit B on the 14th Floor, Waylee Industrial Centre, Block 1, 30-38 Tsuen King Circuit, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding
the meeting. Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will not prevent you from attending
and voting at the Annual General Meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the Repurchase Proposal and the granting of the general
mandate to issue new Shares are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and
accordingly recommend that all shareholders should vote in favour of Resolutions 4 to 6 to be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting as they intend to do themselves in respect of the
Shares controlled by them.

Yours faithfully,
Lee Chun Kwok
Chairman
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